
15.8199.04000 

Amendment to: SB 2318 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/20/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d "f r· td d ti eves an appropna 10ns an wma e un ercurren aw. 

2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017·2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 2017·2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2318 provides a sales and property tax exemption for carbon dioxide capture equipment used in enhanced oil 
recovery. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The potential fiscal impact of SB 2318, if it is enacted, cannot be computed. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

.. .. ··-··-··-----------------------
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15.8199 .02000 

Amendment to : SB 2318 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/20/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and approoriations anticioated under current law. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2318 provides a sales and property tax exemption for carbon dioxide capture equipment used in enhanced oil 
recovery. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The potential fiscal impact of SB 2318, if it is enacted, cannot be computed. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 
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15.8199.01000 

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2318 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/2012015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d d d I eves an appropnat1ons ant1c1pate un er current aw 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 8. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2318 provides a sales and property tax exemption for carbon dioxide capture equipment used in enhanced oil 
recovery. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The potential fiscal impact of SB 2318, if it is enacted, cannot be computed. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For infonnation shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

8. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room , State Capitol 

SB231 8 
2/4/2015 

Job #231 61 

0 Subcommittee 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to a sales and use tax exemption for carbon d ioxide capture equipment used for 
enhanced o i l  recovery. 

Minutes: chment #1, 2, 3, 

Chairman Cook opened the hearing on SB2318. 

Senator Dwight Cook, Dist. 34, Mandan 
Last December I had a chance to meet some folks that talked about the opportun ity to take 
C02 from a conversion faci l ity, put it in a pipe and pipe it to the Bakken for enhanced oi l  
recovery. Some compan ies have partnered and are doing this in Texas .  It wou ld be a 
great thing to be able to do here in North Dakota . They ind icated that they were pursu ing 
plans to accompl ish that. Part of their plan, of cou rse, is to look at our tax environment and 
so I said that I wou ld introduce a bi l l  on their behalf. It is a simple b i l l .  It puts the materials 
used in  compressing,  gathering ,  col lecting ,  storing and transporting or injecting carbon 
d ioxide into the chapter where they wou ld be exempt from sales, just as coal conversion 
faci l ities are and also puts them into the chapter where they would be exempt from property 
tax. The key word there Is that it is located at a coal conversion faci l ity, which is also 
exempt from property tax in  the same section.  It's a green bil l .  It's a good bil l  and I would 
hope that we cou ld g ive it a favorable passing.  

Alan Anderson, Commissioner, North Dakota Dept. of Commerce (Attachment #1) 
Th is b i l l  was one that came up recently. On behalf of EmPower North Dakota. I am here to 
speak in favor of SB231 8. It d idn 't fol low the typical recommendation process through the 
commission.  I n  other words ,  we weren't working on it over the last couple of years d u ring 
the bienn ium . It  was brought forward in front of the commission and approved unan imously 
by the commission because it is an  extremely important b i l l .  

Ryan Kelly, Elite, and I want to introduce to you, Margaret Hodnik, Vice President of 
Regulatory and Legislative Affairs, Elite and Minnesota Power 

Margaret Hodnik, EmPower (Attachment #2) 
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In support of SB2318. We have representatives of N RG present to answer q uestions about 
the technology of the project that is going on in Texas, if you wish .  O u r  technology person 
is Mi lton Howard , Vice President, N RG. 

Senator Triplett -- You r  company's testimony referenced an  advanced C02 capture , if you 
would j ust describe the technology and if you are fami l iar  with the technology that is 
currently being used in  North Dakota at our synthetics fuel plant for C02. Just expla in how 
your  technology is d ifferent from what is currently being done here .  

Milton Howard -- The technology that we are using at  our  Petro plant in  Texas. (The plant 
is located about 20 mi les southwest of Houston.)  M H I  is the technology provider. It's a 
technology that has been around since the 30's,  strippi ng out acid from gas. It has an  
absorber and  a regenerator and  a compressor to  compress the C02. It's about 98% 
effective. The reason this is cal led a new technology is because the scale of it. It wi l l  be 
the largest carbon capture facil ity in the world . We started in September. The pipel ine is 
about 80 mi les long so you need a very large compressor, 26,000hp compressor. The 
absorber and regenerator is 10 times larger. That's the only d ifference. The plant up here 
was an  IGCC plant that is a lot more involved , process-wise, in  extracting synthetic gas 
from coal .  This is a total ly d ifferent process from that. Since we take flu gas from the vent 
stack, cond ition it, cool it, and then take any existing S01 out of the flu gas,  run it through 
the absorber which is an  amine absorbent. The amine bonds with the C02 and then we 
add heat into the regenerator. The oi l  field , right now in Texas,  is producing between 300 
to 500 barrels a day. When we are at peak, it wi l l  produce 1 5,000 barrels a day. This is 
conventional oi l .  It's not shale.  There are conventional o i l  fields here that have , over t ime, 
decl ined greatly. It 's above and below the Bakken and there is s ignificant opportun ities in 
extracting that oi l  using C02. 

Chairman Cook -- You wil l  be using that oi l  for enhanced recovery in  the conventional 
wel ls .  Not necessari ly the shale wel ls .  

Milton Howard -- Right. That's being looked at by other entities. 

Senator Triplett -- Is your  company aware of the tax incentives that we already have for 
enhanced oi l  recovery in  North Dakota? So you th ink this is necessary in  addition to the 
existing tax incentives to make this work for you? 

Milton Howard -- We do. In our project in Texas it was a DOE gra nt of $170 mi l l ion and 
that was a big i ncentive for us and it won't be avai lable. This plant is about a b i l l ion and 
that is what we i ntend to implement up here. 

Chairman Cook -- We put the WTI oi l  on the board up there .  You can see it's going up. 
The trending is right. 

Jason Bohrer, President and CEO, Lignite Energy Council (Attachment #3) 
We support this b i l l  and bel ieve it provides us with two major opportun ities, as wel l  as 
mu ltiple smal ler ind ividual  opportun ities . 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
SB23 1 8 
February 4, 20 1 5  
Page 3 

Senator Dotzenrod -- I was going to try to determine some tax impl ication q uestions of this 
bi l l  and wonder if someone from the tax department could get up and answer some 
questions. 

On page 2, l ines 1 8, 1 9  & 20, in the way the tax department operates are you going to have 
any trouble identifying those things that would meet these terms? Do you have defin itions? 

Myles Vosberg - - Go back to page 1 ,  l ines 1 3  & 1 4, which is the general  exemption. The 
reference that you had was the exemption in the use tax law and on l ines 1 3  & 1 4  it ta lks 
about gross receipts from sales of tangible personal  property used to construct. It's 
basica l ly all of the tangible personal property that goes into that faci l ity. 

Senator Dotzenrod - - If  there was a project in North Dakota that was comparable to the 
one that we heard described that's in Texas, is there any part of it that you think would be 
subject to sales tax? 

Myles Vosberg -- Based on this defin ition ,  probably not. Pretty m uch that's d i rectly related 
to this particu lar project is going to qual ify for the exemption which is consistent with a 
number of the other exemptions in the sales tax law. 

Chairman Cook -- Myles , is it consistent with coal  conversion faci l ities? 

Myles Vosberg - - I n  that particular exemption it ta lks about production equipment and 
other tangible personal property used in the plant. Most of the newer exemptions that 
you've seen in  the last couple of sessions, l ike gas gathering col lection,  compression , 
l iquefied natural gas plants , etc. , use this tangible personal property used to construct 
language. 

Senator Dotzenrod - - I 'm trying to judge if a project l ike this came to North Dakota and the 
project were bu i lt and there's no sales tax collected on the construction and bui ld ing up ;  the 
materials itself, the C02 is not taxed . But outside of that, the net positive for the state 
wouldn 't come from any of the sales tax that we currently would be collecting but wou ld 
come from income tax and the tax on the production that was e n hanced by the project. 
That is my u nderstand ing of how this work as far as state revenues. 

Myles Vosberg - - I th ink that is correct, although I th ink  the additional  production that is 
produced from the enhanced projects , in  some cases, qua l ifies for exemptions. The 
income tax would be one area, d u ring the construction process all the labor there etc. 

Senator Triplett -- Our current tax law is that enhanced oi l  recovery is completely exempt 
from the extraction tax but it is subject to the gross prod uction tax. So it wou ld benefit the 
oil patch but there wou ld not be much benefit for the state as a whole. 

No further testimony. 

Chairman Cook closed the hearing on SB231 8. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Committee work. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Cook opened the committee work on SB2318. 
Just want to see where you are on it and if you have questions, the hearing was on 
February 4. This is the sales and use tax exemption for the gatheri ng ,  collecting ,  storing 
systems for C02 capture.  And , also moves them into the exempt category for ad valorem 
taxes. I see in the paper there were d iscussions on funding a study to figure out how to do 
this.  I was a l ittle b it confused . I thought these folks were a lready doing it down in  Texas ,  

Senator Triplett -- This i s  technology that has been used since the 1 930's. It's not new 
technology. There m ay be some slightly d ifferent absorbent materia ls ,  but the technology 
has been around for decades. 

Senator Bekkedahl - - As you said in  testimony: it's a g reen bi l l ,  it's a good bi l l  and I l i ke 
what it does for industry on both sides. It could be helpful to the coal industry as wel l  as 
our oi l industry, at some point. The fiscal note says a potential fiscal impact,  if it is adopted , 
cannot be computed , but safe to say, there wi l l  be a fiscal impact? 

Chairman Cook -- Yes. 

Senator Dotzenrod - - I th ink that the future for using carbon d ioxide to enhance recovery 
creates a lot of question marks in the future. There's never been a carbon d ioxide 
enhancement in the Bakken . Instead of extracting 7% and leaving 93% behind , we could 
be extracting very h igh  levels of oi l .  We wi l l  probably learn a lot over the next few years 
and I don't know when the first project wi l l  be done in the Bakken.  The thing that struck me 
about this is that if they work l ike some people think they can work, this could real ly be a 
terrific amount of o i l .  Right now, the way we have i t  in  our law, it's not subject to the 
extraction tax. I th ink there is a question ,  and it may belong in a study, if we are going to 
just be getting the 5%, essentially it's going to be local money, we're going to have a state 
program to get this work done and then once it is done, there wil l  be the 5% tax which is 
primari ly local. We could be looking at a tremendous amount of oil that would not be 
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subject to the 61 /2% tax. And there are some questions there about whether the state's 
interest is being preserved. Is that what we want? The voters approved the 61/2% tax. 
We, as a leg islature, exempted the enhanced recovery. Conceivably it cou ld become a 
large part of what is taken out of the Bakken.  That is the unanswered question that looms 
in  the back of my mind with th is. This real ly only gets us to getting the project bu ilt .  It 
doesn't answer the q uestions about what happens afterwards.  

Chairman Cook - - The enhanced oi l  recovery tax incentive, is i t  a permanent tax incentive 
or it is for just so many years? 

Senator Dotzenrod - - I was under the assumption that it was a permanent, zero extraction 
tax without expiration .  As long as it's a minority share of the oi l  that is produced in the 
state, it real ly is not a s ignificant issue but I can see the day where if these th ings work in 
the way that some study work shows , we cou ld end up with a fa i rly sign ificant share .  Now 
that oi l  prices are down , it's not a good time to be getting into that .  

Senator Unruh - - I th ink Senator Dotzenrod brings up a very good point. We do need to 
remember that that is in the code. But another thing we need to remember is that I wasn't 
sure that we would ever get to the point where we could have a post-combustion carbon 
capture project that was economica l ly feasible here in this state and if this b i l l  helps us get 
there, we need to remember that that oil that wou ld be extracted through this process 
wou ldn't have been recoverable otherwise. That is something that we need to keep in mind 
as we look at the pol icy regarding the extraction tax. I th ink there is a lot of potential here .  I 
th ink it is a good thing. I l ike this b i l l .  I 'd l ike to encourage a project that does this.  Did you 
find the extraction tax information? 

Chairman Cook -- Exemption is 5 years for secondary and 10 years for tertiary recovery 
projects. Is that the one? 

Senator Dotzenrod - - No that language d id n't refer to C02 .  Un less secondary recovery is 
considered a category. 

Senator Triplett - - Secondary is water flood ing.  And C02 is genera l ly considered to be a 
tertiary process, although I th ink most people seem to agree that water flood ing is not going 
to work in the Bakken .  I thought there was a very separate and specific one for carbon 
d ioxide. 

Chairman Cook -- And this incrementa l o i l ,  I assume that means the extra o i l .  

Chairman Cook -- We had El ite and N RG approach me to introd uce the b i l l  for them . 
They are fu l l  steam ahead . They seem to be as far as getting something bui lt at the Min­
Kota Power Plant in Center they are not looking at Bakken wel ls ,  or d i rectional dr i l l ing ,  they 
are looking at vertical wel ls .  I have tremendous faith in American i ngenuity to figure out 
what to do. 

Senator Triplett -- I rather l ike Senator Dotzenrod's idea of amend ing a study onto this .  
We cou ld probably get it  done by this afternoon.  
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Chairman Cook -- A study to study the exemption .  Do you want to d o  that, Senator 
Triplett? 

Senator Triplett -- Yes, I can do that. 

Chairman Cook closed the meeting .  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Committee work. 

Minutes: Attachment #1 

Chairman Cook opens the committee work on SB2318. 

Senator Trip lett -- You were read ing from the red book, and it looked l ike it was a 10 year  
but i t  isn't. Our  recollection is  correct, it i s  permanent. The statutory cite is 57-51. 1-03 titled 
is exemptions from the oi l  extraction tax and if you go to subsection 5b, the first sentence 
says what you were reading from the red book which is "the incremental production from a 
tertiary recovery project that does not use carbon d ioxide and which has been certified as a 
qua l ified project by the I ndustrial  Commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 
chapter for a period of 10 years from the date the incremental project beg ins".  But then the 
next sentence say " incrementa l  production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon 
d ioxide and which has been certified as a qual ified project by the I nd ustria l  Commission , is 
exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the incremental 
production beg ins".  The reference to this chapter is just the oi l  extraction tax. My 
interpretation of that is that carbon d ioxide recovery, specifical ly,  is completely exempt from 
the oi l  extraction tax as soon as it is certified by the I ndustrial  Commission for the rest of 
the l ife of the wel l .  

Chairman Cook -- Were you suggesting in you r  comments yesterday that maybe that is 
someth ing that, if we were going to pass th is,  we should take a look at and study? 

Senator Triplett -- Yes. 

Chairman Cook -- I th ink that wou ld be a good idea . Do you want to write the study up,  
first, or, you got it? 

Senator Triplett -- I haven 't yet read this so we' l l  read it together. 

Senator Bekkedahl -- Part of the d iscussion could be for Legacy Wells -vs- Bakken Three 
Forks production which are d ifferent systems, as wel l .  
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Senator Triplett -- And that is something that we cou ld add to this language. Right now it 
says the study m ust include consideration of the potential benefits and costs to the 
industry, the state and the environment of using carbon d ioxide enhanced recovery 
methods. And if you want to m ake that? 

Chairman Cook -- Don't you th ink it is included? 

Senator Triplett -- I t  is  p robably generic enough that it cou ld be included. 

Senator Bekkedahl -- As long as they have that d iscussion. I th ink that is germ aine to th is. 

Chairman Cook -- Do you want to move you r  amendments? 

Senator Triplett-- I would move amendment 15.8199.01001. (Attachment #1) 

Seconded by Senator Laffen 

Senator Laffen -- Are we comfortable that this is far enough out? 

Chairman Cook -- I am.  

Senator Triplett -- The study that KLJ d id for us that was reported back to  the energy 
development and transmission committee suggested that enhanced oi l  recovery for the 
Bakken was probably at least 5 years out and that was from last August. I think it is  sti l l  
probably timely. 

Chairman Cook - - All in favor of amendment 01001 s ignify by saying aye. 

Voice vote carried 6-0. 

We have before us S B2318, as amended . 

Senator Oehlke -- I would move the do pass recommendation on SB2318, as 
amended. 

Seconded by Senator Latten. 

Roll call vote 7-0-0. 

Carrier: Senator Bekkedahl 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 1, l ine 5, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative management study;" 

Page 2, after l ine 30, insert: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - OIL EXTRACTION TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR CARBON DIOXIDE RECOVERY PROJECTS. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall study the oi l  extraction tax exemption 
available for incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon 
dioxide. The study must include consideration of the potential benefits and costs to 
industry, the state, and the environment of using carbon dioxide enhanced recovery 
methods. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifty legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.8199.01001 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_27 _017 
Carrier: Bekkedahl 

Insert LC: 15.8199.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2318: Finance and Taxation Committee (Sen. Cook, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 231 8  was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative management study;" 

Page 2, after l ine 30, insert: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUD Y - OIL EXTRACTION TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR CARBON DIOXID E RECOVERY PROJECTS. During the 2015-
16 interim ,  the legislative management shall study the oil extraction tax exemption 
available for incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon 
dioxide. The study must include consideration of the potential benefits and costs to 
industry, the state, and the environment of using carbon dioxide enhanced recovery 
methods. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifty legislative assembly." 

Renumber accord ingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_27 _017 
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D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

lanation or reason f r introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to a sales and use tax exemption for carbon dioxide capture 
equipment used for enhanced oil recovery; relating to ad valorem property tax 
exemption for carbon dioxide capture equipment used for enhanced oil recovery. 

Minutes: II Attachment #1, 2, 3 

Chairman Headland: Opened hearing .  

Senator Cook: I ntrod uced b i l l .  I th ink i t  was last December I got an  invite to come and 
have a cup of coffee at the capital cafeteria where I was introduced to some folks from 
ALLETE and a company out of Texas cal led N RG. We heard of their plans of what they 
are doing in  Texas,  retro fitt ing a power plant, capturing C02 out of a smoke l ine putting it in  
a pipel ine and taking i t  an oi l  fie ld for and enhanced oi l  recovery. They said they wanted to 
come to North Dakota to do the same th ing at the Mi lton Young Station and I thought this is 
a great idea . I p ledge them.  

Chairman Headland: I s  there any support? 

Alan Anderson, North Dakota Department of Commerce: Distributed testimony. See 
attachment #1. 

Chairman Headland: Is there any concern that by passing an incentive l ike th is would 
legitim ize pol icy from the EPA that we tend to d isagree with? 

Alan Anderson: I t  would probably be just the opposite. The EPA one of their biggest 
concerns is greenhouse gas submissions. It's C02 . That's why you have seen what some 
members would say is a war on coa l from some of the regu lations.  F inding ways to 
incentivize the use of that C02 and the capture and the use of it would be right along the 
EPA's gu idel ines I would expect. 

Chairman Headland: It would be a long their guidel ines but I have concern that in some 
way sit m ight say that we agree with their policy which I don't th ink many of us do. 
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Representative Haak: How many of these systems exist right now in North Dakota that 
would get that exemption? Do any exist or are we looking to bring them here? 

Alan Anderson: None exist right now in  North Dakota . I would turn to industry, because 
with DGC we do uti l ize some C02 . We move it up to Canada in particu lar, but this is a l ittle 
d ifferent and hopefu l ly ALLETE can answer it as wel l .  

Representative Steiner: The effective dates on page 3 section 5 are spl it .  Do you know 
why sections 1 and 2 are effective in  2015 and section 3 is affective in 2014? Does that 
mean they a l ready started work? 

Alan Anderson: I don't know off hand . 

Representative Froseth: Would the C02 work in increasing production in wel ls or would it 
become above the classification of a stripper wel l? 

Alan Anderson: With the intent to move to the secondary or tert iary recovery that could 
occur m uch sooner than in  the stripper wel l  portion .  In other words you could have benefits 
of increase in  that recovery even at wells that are wel l  above the volume rate of the stripper 
wel l .  

Chairman Headland: I s  there further support? 

Ryan Kelly, Allete: I ntroduced president of Clean Energy 

Eric Norberg, Allete Clean Energy: Distributed testimony. See attachment #2 . Also 
d istributed testimony from Lign ite Energy Council. See attachment #3. 

Representative Schneider: On the bi l l  itself is that modeled on one that's successfu l ly 
been a l ready passed in  Texas? 

Eric Norberg: Yes it is. Many of the provisions for promoting carbon capture legislation is 
a l ready in place in North Dakota and these are a few additional  provisions that are 
consistent with that. 

Representative Haak: How many jobs d id that create, permanent or temporary? 

Eric Norberg: I bel ieve the N RG rep wou ld be able to answer that. 

Milton Howard, NRG: We started this project about 4 or 5 years ago and it is now under 
construction . It  wi l l  be the world's largest carbon capture project bu i lt to date . It wi l l  go into 
operation in  2016. Peak employment is about 500 people in construction and then we used 
existing operating staff and a lso supplemented that with new h i res. I would say to operate 
the carbon capture system we probably have about 25 to 30 fu l ltime jobs and then we used 
the existing plant staff to operate. 

Chairman Headland: I s  this going to be at the same scale as what you are doing 1n 
Texas? 
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Milton Howard: Yes. It wi l l  be at least that size. It's a 240 megawatt project. The carbon 
capture system is a bit d ifferent than the DGC plant and that its post combustion, meaning 
we are just taking the flue gas from the exhaust stack and basically treating it, removing the 
C02 and then sending it to a pipe l ine for enhanced oil recovery. The project size wi l l  be 
wel l  over a b i l l ion dol lars and it wi l l  take us anywhere from not to about 4 to 5 years to 
complete. We are actively looking at o i l  fields in North Dakota. There is a DOE study that 
was done a few years ago but there was about 9 bi l l ion barrels of oi l  that is trapped in  the 
Wil l iston bas in .  There are 1,600 fie lds in the Wil l iston basin and North Dakota has 555 
fields. That is conventional  o i l  not the Bakken sha le. The way an oi l  wel l  is typical ly dri l led 
is you have a primary production and then you come back with water flood ing, which is a 
secondary prod uction,  and then the third production is C02. Without C02 it doesn't 
happen so its trapped energy. 

Representative Kading: Would this project be profitable if you didn't get the sales tax 
exemption? 

Milton Howard: We defin ite ly need the exemptions to make this happen.  A lot of it 
depends on o i l  prices . If the oi l  prices stay as low as they are right now it is not profitable 
even with the exemptions. 

Chairman Headland: Part of the beauty in  what you're trying to do in  North Dakota is we 
have the existing coal right next to the existing oi l  which real ly makes it a project that has a 
lot of merit. 

Representative Trottier: What percentage of the C02 does it recover? 

Milton Howard: We recover about 90 percent. 

Representative Froseth: Is  it possible to capture C02 and put it in an old abandoned wel l  
and hold it there just to get rid of the C02? 

Milton Howard: Yes, it depends on the formations. 

Representative Froseth: There wou ld be a charge for the C02 gas for an oi l  company to 
put it into their wel l  to make it prod uce more? 

Milton Howard: That would be a very expensive process but feasible. 

Representative Froseth: Would the benefit of capturing that C02 to meet federal 
requ i rements of cleaning up coa l plants wou ld that offset the cost that m ight be involved in  
capturing i t  and getting rid of it? 

Milton Howard: Yes it should. 

Representative Haak: In your  handout that you offered it said that it  increased prod uction 
from about 500 barrels per day to 15,000 barrels per day peaking at 30,000, would you see 
that same kind of i ncrease here in North Dakota? 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
SB 231 8 
March 4, 20 1 5  
Page 4 

Milton Howard: That's exactly what we're looking at. The carbonate reservoir, the 
m 1ss1on cannon formation, the lodge pole and the Charles formation are all these 
conventional carbonated h igh ly porous permeable reservoir  that's in some case are greater 
than what we are seeing in the south . 

Representative Hatlestad: Are there any plants of any size anywhere in the world that is 
doing what the Texas plant is projected to do? 

Milton Howard: There is a project in Canada that is in operation now that is I bel ieve 140 
megawatts of flue gas not the 240 megawatts but it wi l l  be the largest. 

Chairman Headland: How does the revenue to support this? Who pays? 

Milton Howard: The rea l  benefit is if you take l ike our Petra Nova Plant, the oil field there 
went from 50,000 barrels a day in 1940's and they went to 500 barrels a day over time. 
The estimated reserves of reservoirs were 2 mi l l ion barrels.  When we are complete with 
the flood ing that 2 m i l l ion goes to 60 mi l l ion ,  that's where the value is and we end up 
partnering with the oi l  field operator. The money is from the oi l .  

Chairman Headland: We're trying to figure how that is a l l  going to work. You say you're 
going to enter a partnership with the oi l  company in the particular field that you are moving 
the C02 and you'l l  share in  the profits from that expanded oi l  prod uction .  

Milton Howard: Yes sir. 

Chairman Headland: I s  there further support 

Dale Niezwaag, Basin Electric: We do support the b i l l, we th ink it is a good b i l l .  The 
question Representative Haak had on what we are doing at Dakota Gas; at Dakota Gas we 
are gasifying coal so we are more or less cooking the coal that contains vessels and that 
a l lows us to really control the emissions that come off and separate the C02. The party 
they are looking at here is a power plant where you crush the coa l ,  burn it and then you 
have the emissions go out of a large stack. So the capture method is completely d ifferent 
from what we are doing at DGC . We looked at a s imi lar type project in 2012 to do. We 
were looking at a s l ip frame. We turned back the 100 mi l l ion dol lar grant and put the 
project on hold because I j ust wasn't feasible at the time to get it done. As far as the 
prod uction from the field what we do with Dakota Gas, C02 we send it to Canada and it is 
put in to a trad itional oil fie ld .  They have seen a simi lar type production get a 300 percent 
increase. EERC is a lso doing work with the Bakken.  They are doing stud ies and 
determined that the Bakken shale wi l l  interact with C02 and you can sign ificantly increase 
the production out of that. The problem that you have with the trad itional field with the 
vertical holes, you s imply put C02 around the edges and force the oi l  to wel ls .  So the 
problem that we have with the Bakken is how do you pressurize wel ls that are horizonta l 
and so long , because you have to get the C02 in there, pressurize it and then l iquefy it and 
get it out. That work is ongoing . The industry is convinced that the EPA and the 
admin istration are not going to help us in this endeavor. The other thing that we need to do 
is once we find all this out we sti l l  have to convince the oil companies that this is a good 
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thing . They u nderstand that a l l  they do is dr i l l  out a hole in  the Bakken and they get 
prod uction so in order for them to go to a C02 type flood it is an expensive proposition and 
someth ing we rea l ly have to justify on that. 

Representative Froseth: If you exempt extraction tax on C02 use on these wel ls we are 
going to lose a lot of revenue.  We are going to be in  the same pred icament we are now 
with the trigger price going on the production .  I th ink that section 4 would cause qu ite a bit 
of concern . 

Dale Niezwaag: I don't have an op1n1on on it at this point. I was unaware that the 
extraction tax was not paid when C02 extracted oi l .  I was unaware of that at that point. 

Chairman Headland: Can we assume the if this technology is moved forward that this wil l  
be a technology that the EPA wil l  expect in  some of their standards that they are putting 
forth for C02 capture or what is al lowed to be put out to the atmosphere .  

Dale Niezwaag: That's the  m i l l ion dol lar question . This wou ld add ress the  C02 . We th ink 
that just stuffing it in  the ground is not a solution .  

Representative Hatlestad: Are you in a partnership now with this company o r  do you just 
pay them to clean you r  stack gas? 

Dale Niezwaag: We have no involvement in this project at a l l .  The project that we tried in 
2012 we put on the shelf and have not pursued it at this point .  We have no interest with 
this current project at a l l .  The only thing is we love to see it work and if it works we wil l  look 
at it for our power plants. 

Chairman Headland: Is there further support? Is there any opposition? 

Representative Froseth: I don't know at this point if there is any information he can give 
us.  If you lose extraction tax on mi l l ions of barrels of oi ls it's going to leave us in the same 
situation as we are right now with the possibi l ity of los ing that 6.5 percent and cutting a l l  the 
budgets a l l  the way around . This section 4 says that management shal l  study it so they 
have to do the study if this passes. 

Chairman Headland: There's an easy solution by taking the study out of the bi l l .  

Representative Froseth: We could but maybe the study would bring out some of those 
concerns too. 

Representative Klein: What was the reasoning for the two d ifferent effective dates. 

Myles Vosberg, Tax Commissioner's Office: The reason there are two d ifferent effective 
dates is because we have sales tax and then we have section 3 that deals with the ad 
valorem property tax. Anything property tax related is done on a calendar year basis. 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

SB 2318 
4/1 /2015 

25686 

0 Subcommittee 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: Attachment #1 

John Walstad, Legislative Council: Distributed proposed amend ments 15.8199.02002 ; 
see attachment #1. This amendment was prepared at the request of the Chairman 
Headland . The house ki l led a bi l l  for a pipelines exemption from property tax that this 
should not be a bi l l  that g rants sales and use tax exemption for pipel ines. The language in 
here talks about property used to construct or expand a system to compress, gather, 
col lect, store, transport, or inject carbon d ioxide for enhanced recovery. There are a bunch 
of words in there about what kind of property might be included . The most suspicious one 
on the l ist applying to pipel ines is transport. The amendment knocks that out so it would 
not apply to property used to transport carbon d ioxide.  Because the other words on the l ist 
cou ld be argued about l ike gather, store, col lect, and inject so I put in specifical ly the 
exemption in this section cannot be interpreted to apply the tangible personal property 
incorporated as a component part of a pipeline. That should make it clear what the 
intention is. The next change is deleting the references to "transport" or "transporting ." 
There's an add ition in the use tax law where the exemption is provided taking out 
"transporting" and add ing that sentence again that none of those other words can be 
interpreted to be a component part of a pipeline. Section 3 is added to the bi l l .  I pul led in 
only the part of the exemption law that relates to incremental production from a tertiary 
recovery using carbon d ioxide .  The part being changed is the second sentence which is an 
exemption for incremental production from tertiary recovery using carbon d ioxide. A two 
year moratorium is inserted on the incremental exemption for production from carbon 
d ioxide flood ing in a tertiary project from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. There is 
some question about whether such projects m ight even happen but if something does 
happen this provides that exemption does not apply to production through the end of the 
b iennium.  After that moratorium period the exemption comes back into play either for a 
new wel l ,  new incremental production or for existing incremental production in case 
somebody beg ins a tertiary recovery with carbon d ioxide before the end of the biennium.  
Beg inning on J u ly 1, 2017 the exemption would apply to incremental production from that 
wel l .  

Chairman Headland: When I asked for this amendment we talked about the moratorium 
specific only to the Bakken pool .  
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John Walstad: Oh,  the horizonta l Bakken. That's right; I forgot to include that language. 

Chairman Headland: I d idn't want to stop any project that may be in somebody's plans 
today. 

Representative Schneider: Can you elaborate on that? What would not be in the Bakken 
pool and not fal l  under this? 

John Walstad: I s  it  Cedar  C reek? 

Chairman Headland: It's Red River Pool .  

John Walstad: Lynn Helms suggested that rather than trying to l ist the operations where it 
would sti l l  apply we l imit this moratorium to horizontal wel ls in the Bakken. 

Chairman Headland: It was Cedar H i l ls  because there was a plan to bring the C02 from 
Wyoming for that project in the works. We d idn't want to prohib it that from moving forward . 
The technology isn't there yet for Bakken Pool for horizonta l flood ing . We thought it wou ld 
be wise we have a moratorium d u ring the time that we're studying tert iary.  We d idn't want 
to mess with the total pol icy of exempting tertiary recovery. 

Representative Steiner: When you say it is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 
chapter, is that the extraction tax? 

John Walstad: Yes , at six and a half. It's a pretty substantial state incentive. 

Representative Steiner: The trad itional incentive was a reduction though .  

John Walstad: Not on secondary and tertiary. The extraction tax has a l l  kinds of th ings 
with d ifferent dates and triggers. Subsection 4 and 5 of this section are not triggered . The 
first part of this provision in here ,  not using carbon d ioxide, the incremental oil is exempt for 
ten years. There is no l imit to the exemption using carbon d ioxide for tert iary recovery; it's 
just exempt. The incremental oil is exempt forever. It's a pretty substantial commitment of 
assistance from the state. 

Chairman Headland: How long wi l l  it take you to fix this amendment? 

John Walstad: We can fix this.  In your  amendment where it has the language about 
exempt or not exempt from J uly 1 ,  201 5 through June 30 , 2 0 1 7 ,  right after the comma 
following 201 7 insert "for horizontal wells in the Bakken formation."  

Chairman Headland: That would be inclusive of Three Forks then? 

John Walstad: Lynn Helms said if we say Bakken then that includes Three Forks because 
it l ies right under it. S ince we're not absolutely sure let's say "Bakken or Three Forks 
formation."  
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Representative Steiner: I th ink we should tag on a study of the exemptions because there 
is such a mess . 

Chairman Headland: It's on here .  

John Walstad: It's section 6 in  the bi l l  with this amendment. 

Chairman Headland: I t 's section 4 of the original b i l l  and section 6 of the bi l l  with the 
amendment. 

Representative Steiner: This is just one small  piece; we should study al l  of them not just 
tertiary. A lot of our extraction tax incentives started in 1987 and they don't match up that 
well anymore. It was to spur activity and I would say that when you have what we had you 
had activity and then they were supposed to go away. Now you're g iving another 
exemption that has no sunset and we'l l  have no idea in ten years where we're going to be. 
It 's a lmost l ike we're repeating the past. 

Chairman Headland: We're giving another exemption? 

Representative Steiner: Ten years from now, once you get it going do you a lways want to 
g ive that incentive or do you want to , at some point, pu l l  it back? 

Chairman Headland: That's the reason we're going to study the tertiary recovery. 
understand what you're ta lking about but I don't th ink it fits this b i l l .  

Representative Hatlestad: Why do we have an open-ended exemption? We just turn 
them loose forever? 

John Walstad: No termination. 

Chairman Headland: Because the legislature passed that in the 2009 session. 

John Walstad: I bel ieve this one is considerably older than that. 

Chairman Headland: Are you talking about the pipel ine? 

John Walstad: No, I was talking about the carbon d ioxide tertiary recovery that is for the 
l ife of the wel l  any incremental production forever is exempt. 

Chairman Headland: We d idn't pass that in 2009? 

John Walstad: Oh no, it's been here a long time. When that was put in law there was not 
even a suggestion that someone might doing that. Nobody is doing it now. 

Representative Froseth: The only wells that use that now are vertical wel ls .  Could you 
tel l  us what the repealers are? 
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John Walstad: Pipeline exemption for the gasification plant on the pipe line to Canada .  It  
was a ten year exemption that h as run out. 

Chairman Headland: That has run out. The state was paying that for ten years .  

John Walstad: I think that expired in  2005. The period that was avai lable has  passed . 

Chairman Headland: I 'm hearing the committee would be more comfortable with a 
m arked up version with the change. 

John Walstad: S u re. 

Chairman Headland: We'l l  recess until we can get that from John later th is morning. 
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Chairman Headland: I 've got some information on the amount of p roperty taxes the state 
paid on the existing Basin pipel ine; it looks l ike it's about a half mi l l ion dol lars a year  and it 
goes up a l ittle each yea r. We have some people here if anyone has any questions. I don't 
have the amendment. It has to be re-written because it went way further than I had 
intended . 

Representative Schneider: Why the amendment? What's beh ind the motivation to 
amend this bi l l  because I thought it was a good bi l l  to begin with? 

Chairman Headland: I q uestioned why there is the wide open extraction tax exemption for 
tert iary recovery. My thoughts were to d i rect that p iece and have it avai lable for this project 
but not to further something that could potential ly impact oi l  production everywhere in the 
state and have a d ramatic impact on state revenues. 

Representative Schneider: Do we have an idea of the impact on state revenues? 

Chairman Headland: We don't because the technology for C02 recovery in horizontal 
wel l  isn't avai lable today. We could ask that question. 

Vice Chairman Owens: I bel ieve we have a gentleman from EERC that would be able to 
answer you r  question about C02. 

Chairman Headland: How far down the road are we from looking at avai lable technology? 

Tom Erickson, Director of Energy and Environmental Research Center at the 
University of North Dakota: There have been a handfu l of field tests done to date on 
uti l izing C02 for enhanced oi l  recovery in the Bakken. They have been very instructive but 
I don't th ink they would be cal led technical and economic successes. We a re a ways down 
the path before we wil l  see the appl ication. We hope this summer  we wi l l  be doing a new 
field study uti l izing the th ings that have been learned from the previous tests and some of 
the ideas and concept we have in theories about why they d idn't work and how to improve 
them . We don't have a formal commitment to have that project started this summer but we 
a re very hopeful that we wi l l  have at least one field test beg inning th is summer. 
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Vice Chairman Owens: You're ta lking about using C02 for oi l  recovery. 

Tom Erickson: Correct. 

Vice Chairman Owens: We currently send C02 to Canada. Add itional ly,  on the coa l side 
they are looking at new technology in Texas that somehow takes the coal and extracts the 
C02 from it without any energy loss or carbon d ioxide emissions. Is  that true? 

Tom Erickson: I th ink you're referring to the Allam Cycle and that is a new way of 
converting once you take coa l and gasify it then you convert that gas to a relatively pure 
C02 stream and run a turbine on that C02 stream. It 's another way of gasifying and 
combusting coal but i t  a l lows you to have much h igher efficiency and in  the end come up 
with a C02 product without having to spend a lot of additional capita l .  It shows great 
promise but it has a ways to go before it's ready for primetime. The C02 that goes up to 
the Weyburn Field in the neighbors north of us is being used in a conventional  reservoir. 
C02 for enhanced oi l  recovery is used today and is relatively wel l  understood on both a 
technical basis as wel l  as an  economic basis for conventional reservoirs .  The Bakken is 
not a conventional  reservoir. When you try and take things that work in other appl ications 
and then bring them to the Bakken they commonly don't work. That's the reason why the 
handful of fie ld tests done to date have not shown great techn ical and economic promise 
for utilizing C02 for enhanced oil recovery although they have been very instructive in 
gu id ing us to what will work. 

Chairman Headland: There are severa l older oil fields where this would work very wel l  
too. Let's not confuse this project with Al lam Cycle because it  is not the same. Is  this a 
pretty descriptive look at the total project? If I went up to the tax department and said 
under existing law what pieces here are already covered? Could they pick out pieces that 
are not? 

Ryan Kelly, ALLETE: The tax department used that sheet as a supplement about the 
project to craft the orig inal  bill you have before you today. 

Chairman Headland: We are sti l l  at a standsti l l .  

Vice Chairman Owens: When we were going through this it  looked to me that they were 
just add ing verbiage on the orig inal  b i l l .  Each coal conversion faci l ity m ust be classified as 
personal property and exempt for a l l  ad valorem except for taxes on the land which the 
facil ity is located . That along with the carbon d ioxide pipel ine exemption payment in l ieu of 
taxes . Are we dupl icating law here? Do we already have in place what we need here 
except maybe this first part where it's the gross receipt of sa les? 

Ryan Kelly: When we checked with the tax department it was their opinion that there 
would be new components that weren't a l ready recovered under the coal plant exemptions 
as wel l  as the wel l  head exemptions that would exist. There's a compressor and a few 
other components that would be located off the wel l  head and off the site used to compress 
the gas that fa l ls under the intent of the original  pol icy but to be safe we wanted to clarify it 



House F inance and Taxation Committee 
SB 2318 
April 1, 2015 
Page 3 

was i ncluded . I t  wasn't the intent of the orig inal  b i l l  to m ake perm anent property tax 
exemptions for the p ipel ine .  

Vice Chairman Owens: When you talk about the compressor and the stuff outside the 
wel l  head because if it's at the wel l  head it can sti l l  be part of the exem ption for the o i l  
p roduction .  Are you talk ing about additional  property tax or  sales and use tax exemption 
for that comp ressor and equipment? 

Ryan Kelly: I believe it was both . 

Chairman Headland: C urrently i n  the code 56-60.06 there is that exempted ad lorem tax 
lang uage a l ready for a coal plant. I th ink  you r  language expands it from the p la nt to the 
complete project. 

Ryan Kelly: That's what we were trying to do. There was basically l ittle gap i n  the 
exemptions; you had the stuff at the wel l  head that was covered u nder existing policy at the 
coal p lant and there were new components necessary for the project's completion and 
success that we were looking to extend for clarification of some new technologies this 
would bring. 

Representative Froseth: If this b i l l  passes and someday C02 gas m ig ht be used for 
secondary productions on  horizontal wel ls a l l  that new production ,  if it i ncreases production 
per day, wi l l  be exempt from the extraction tax. As a result of this b i l l  we a re deal ing with 
a nother issue completely. 

Chairman Headland: You're right. We'l l  stand at ease unti l we h ave something further to 
d iscuss. 
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Chairman Headland: Distributed the new d raft of the amendment. See attachment #1 for 
the amendment and #2 for the marked up version of the bi l l .  This amendment is attempting 
to provide the language al lowed for property tax exemption on a C02 l ine which is a ten 
year exemption .  We're also clarifying that this exemption from the extraction tax is going to 
be specific to non-Bakken wel ls .  We're going to have a two year moratorium on the 
exemption for Bakken wel ls  whi le we go through the study of tertiary recovery. The 
language in  section fou r  is what I was referring .  I 'm confused about section three; I don't 
know where the ten year reference is so we need to have John Walstad come down and 
expla in this.  

Representative Schneider: Could you tel l  me whether it's 57-51.1 or someth ing else on 
the ten year provis ion? 

Chairman Headland: It is and that's what we're just d iscovering .  That's what the current 
law is;  there's a lready a ten year period if it's not C02. 

Representative Dockter: Are we just adding that in? 

Chairman Headland: No.  We're putting new language in .  John ,  could you walk us 
through the amendment? 

John Walstad, Legislative Council: Explained the amendments . The first section of the 
b i l l  relates to a sales tax exemption .  This morn ing it d id not a l low that exemption to apply 
to pipeli nes but now it does. 

Chairman Headland: Like the orig inal  d raft? 

John Walstad: Like the orig inal  b i l l .  This morning the language for sales tax exemption 
for carbon d ioxide property used in enhanced recovery said it d id not apply to pipel ines so 
a l l  that new language is removed and it's back to where it was , it does exempt pipelines. I n  
section three is  our  extraction tax exemption. I worded i t  a b it d ifferently to make i t  very 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
SB 231 8 
April 1 ,  201 5  
Page 2 

clear that we don't get confused on the kinds of C02 tertiary recovery that are add ressed . 
The first part of sentence two in subsection b takes care of any wells not horizontal Bakken. 
The exemption would continue to apply to them just as it does today. The second sentence 
on the top of page three states incremental prod uction from a tertiary recovery project that 
uses carbon d ioxide for a horizonta l wel l  in the Bakken or Three Forks formation and which 
has been certified as a qual ified project by the industrial  commission is not exempt from 
J uly 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. Those would become exempt incremental production 
as wel l  from J uly 1, 2017 or when the incremental production begins ,  whichever is later. 
The reason it's worded that way is if a horizontal Bakken wel l  starts using carbon d ioxide 
for i ncremental production prior to Ju ly 1, 2017 that exemption wouldn 't apply to them but 
beginn ing Ju ly 1 it would kick in for those wells.  In section four  it is d ifferent than what we 
were looking at earlier today. This relates to the possibi l ity of d uel ing property tax 
exemptions for carbon d ioxide pipel ine. This is part of the coal conversion tax. The faci l ity 
and the carbon d ioxide capture system at the faci l ity and anything used d i rectly in  
enhanced recovery is exempt from ad valorem taxes; i t  is  treated l ike personal property 
where no property tax appl ies. The exemption under this section in the new language is 
not interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of a 
carbon d ioxide pipel ine for purposes of this law which provides permanent property tax 
exemption .  Carbon d ioxide pipel ine property does not qual ify for that permanent exemption 
but it is el ig ible under 57-06.17.1 which was repealed but is not repealed now. It is a 
section that provides a ten year property tax exemption specifically for carbon d ioxide 
pipeline property. 

Chairman Headland: I th ink we're at where I tried to get with this amendment. 
Committee , what are your  thoughts? 

Representative Dockter: Made a motion to adopt the amendment 1 5.81 99.02003. 

Representative Strinden: Second. 

Representative Steiner: How does the coal extraction tax apply? You said that it's not to 
be interpreted as personal property so are coal taxes sti l l  appl ied and in which way are they 
appl ied? They are producing C02 to some extent or is it considered a byproduct and it's 
not appl ied? 

John Walstad: The provisions of this bil l do not affect how the coal conversion tax appl ies. 
If carbon d ioxide is considered a byproduct that has a value now then that would be subject 
to some tax. I guess if carbon d ioxide has a value then it probably has a negative in  front 
of it. 

Representative Steiner: I don't th ink it's considered a prod uct to be taxed . 

John Walstad: This does not relate to coal  taxes at a l l .  The provision in  the conversion 
tax is related to the exemption of the coal convers ion faci l ity from property taxes; the 
structure. It's considered personal property and is not subject to property taxes.  It pays a 
generation tax in  l ieu of property tax. The provision here i n  the conversion tax law relates 
to that kind of exemption for the property on those faci l ities and whether property tax is 
appl ied. The only issue here is if there's carbon d ioxide capture property brought on s ite it 
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isn 't covered by the existing exemption for structure because it's not put there to convert 
coal into electricity; it's there for a d ifferent purpose . Th is wou ld provide that it gets treated 
the same way; it's personal property not assessed by the assessor. 

Vice Chairman Owens: I n  this section it refers to byprod ucts and then it goes on to define 
carbon d ioxide captured so that tel ls me that it's not considered a byproduct; it's considered 
someth ing other than a byproduct out of the coal  conversion process. 

Representative Schneider: The C02 pipel ine has a ten year  time l imit on it. We know 
the C02 pipel ine has a ten year  l imit. There's another section that says non-carbon d ioxide 
tertiary production also has a ten year l imit on it but carbon d ioxide does not. Is that right? 

John Walstad: That's true. You're looking at time l imits but d ifferent kinds of taxes. The 
ten year  l imit on property tax appl ication to a pipel ine is one component. The second th ing 
you mentioned is not a property tax exemption ; it is a ten year exemption from the oi l  
extraction tax. 

Representative Schneider: None of the C02 projects have a l imit on the oil extraction 
time l imit? 

John Walstad: That can go on until you stop getting incremental oil out of the ground . If 
you don't use carbon d ioxide those are l imited to ten years and they do have a cutoff. 

Chairman Headland: Current statute that real ly isn't part of this b i l l .  

Representative Mitskog: What projects are p lanning to take advantage of this? 

John Walstad: Nothing right now but I 've heard a rumor there is a project in  some stage of 
d iscussion to bring carbon d ioxide from Wyoming into one of the vertical wel l  fields in the 
southwestern part of the state . I have no knowledge of a C02 pipel ine in play to bring 
carbon d ioxide into the Bakken and Three Forks formation .  

Representative Mitskog: We've heard that the technology isn't q u ite there yet. 

Chairman Headland: Are you referring to horizontal wells? 

Representative Mitskog: That m ight be it. 

John Walstad: My u nderstanding is this method of increasing oil production is in its 
infancy or less than infancy. 

Representative Hatlestad: On the top of page 3 at the el imination of the Bakken and 
Three Forks formation,  can you expla in why we do that? 

Chairman Headland: I 'm not sure that it is necessary but some of us get nervous with a 
fu l l  blown exemption that's on the books. 
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Vice Chairman Owens: If I 'm going to bui ld this project and this bi l l  passes I 've got the oi l  
extraction tax for ten years and the pipel ine under coal conversion along with the stuff that I 
put at the coal conversion site as personal property so I e l iminated ad valorem tax there ;  
what taxes am I paying? What's left? 

John Walstad: I ncome and a substantial amount of sales tax.  There are a lot of other 
parts of that process that are subject to sales tax. There is a significant amount of income 
tax from employment ga in .  Also the operator wil l  have to d ig deep in their pockets to get 
this done. 

Vice Chairman Owens: Didn't I read that there is a 20% income tax credit as wel l? 

John Walstad: I don't recal l  that. 

Chairman Headland: Are there any concerns with the amendment? 

Representative Klein: I th ink this is before it's time; there are too many unknowns here. 

Chairman Headland: Is there any other d iscussion? 

Representative Steiner: I th ink we have the 2017 session to look at it and we' l l  have the 
study going on. It 's on ly 10% of the wel ls .  We' l l  know more in  two years . 

Chairman Headland: That would be the intention . 

Voice vote: Motion carried to adopt the amendment. 

Representative Trottier: I agree that we are deal ing with something before it's t ime. 
Made a motion for a do not pass as amended. 

Representative Klein: Second. 

Chairman Headland: I am going to vote against the do not pass . I th ink th is b i l l  needs to 
move forward . We've tried to answer some questions and concerns with the amendment. I 
think this is an important b i l l  that needs to move forward . 

Vice Chairman Owens: I sti l l  have questions. There's something in  my gut that doesn't 
feel right but I can 't put my finger on it. I 'm going to support the do not pass . 

Representative Strinden: I th ink the amendment makes the bi l l  substantia l ly better but I 
also am going to support the do not pass. 

Roll call vote: 6 yes 6 no 2 absent 

Chairman Headland: We have a tie so we need to find another representative and vote. 

Representative Froseth: I th ink this is an important bi l l  too.  I can agree that it's probably 
a l ittle bit before it's time and noth ing is going to happen with compan ies coming in and 
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taking advantage of this in  the next two yea rs . I th ink the study is i mportant. I have a lot of 
questions  too yet but I thi n k  we should pass it a nd get i nto a conference committee with the 
senate. Made a motion for a do pass as amended. 

Representative Dockter: Second. 

Representative Trottier: I d on 't have anyth ing against the b i l l  but I th ink  we're a head of 
our  t ime. If it encourages carbon d ioxide movement and development then I d on 't have a 
p roblem with it. I just thought we were passing a bi l l  that wasn 't needed yet. 

Representative Steiner: I appreciate everybody giving this a chance .  If it goes into 
conference it may just go out as a study. The l ignite industry is facing the issue with the 
C02 and the regional  h aze so if we find a home for C02 and it benefits the o i l  industry, 
keeping people employed , p lus preserves our l ignite industry I th ink  it ends up being a win­
win .  I th ink  we should move it forward . 

Chairman Headland: My thoughts exactly. We passed legis lation that's going to provide 
an i nterim comm ittee to take a look at these exemptions and exceptions that we're passing 
to see if they a re effective. This wi l l  get looked at. If  nothing h appens between now and 
then things could change. 

Representative Schneider :  I l ike this concept and I 'm excited about the prospect of 
having the C02 used in  this way with the benefit to both the coal and petroleum projects. 
It's just so ope n  ended. 

Rol l  call  vote: 7 yes 5 no 2 absent 

Motion carries for a do pass as amended. 

Chairman Headland wil l carry this bil l .  
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Chairman Headland: Opened hearing.  It's been brought to my attention that there have 
been some un intended consequences with the actions we took so I 'm asking the committee 
to reconsider our actions. 

Vice Chairman Owens: Made a motion to reconsider our actions. 

Representative Hatlestad: Second. 

Voice vote: Motion carried. 

Chairman Headland: We have SB 231 8 before us.  I 'm going to ask that we reconsider 
our action on the prior amendment. 

Representative Dockter: 
1 5.81 99.02003. 

Made a motion to reconsider the amendment 

Representative Steiner: Second. 

Voice vote: Motion carried. 

Chairman Headland: Distributed proposed amendments 1 5.81 99.02004; see attachment 
# 1 . This amendment addresses some of the concerns from the last amendment. It wi l l  
cover a l l  parties involved . The first portion of the amendment is the language from the last 
amendment that speaks to the ten year property tax exemption ; page two l ines twenty-eight 
of century code 57.06-17.1. The new portion is the next paragraph where we wi l l  add 
language to the study to address some of the concerns about the Bakken and Three Forks 
Formation . 

Representative Strinden: Could you g ive us a rundown of the un intended consequences 
from the previous amendment? 
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Chairman Headland: There were concerns brought to us by the petroleum and coa l 
industry in how the lang uage with the moratorium may send the wrong signal  for 
investment purposes to investors. That may stop a project such as this dead in its tracks 
and we certain ly don't want anything l ike that to be caused by the work of this committee. 

Representative Steiner: It was mentioned before that this was open-ended but th is 
doesn't rea l ly close the end.  This is sti l l  open-ended but we don't expect any projects to 
occur. 

Chairman Headland: We had the gentleman from the EERC expla in to us that the 
technology is not close yet so we feel this wi l l  cover us. This will start the d iscussion of the 
consequences of the exemption for the pol itical subd ivisions as wel l  as the state in  the 
study. 

Representative Mitskog: Would there be any harm in putting a sunset on this g iven that 
the technology isn't q u ite there yet and there are no projects ready to go? 

Chairman Headland: The leg islature has the abi l ity to revisit every two years . We passed 
a b i l l ,  SB 2057, whereby we are going to study al l  economic development incentives in  
statute today. At some point in the next six years this and  every other incentive is going to 
get looked at and if it's not being used or it's not effective I 'm certain the legislature is going 
to get rid of anyth ing outdated or not being used . On projects of this size and scope 
sunsets send bad messages . There are appropriate times for sunsets and I don't bel ieve 
this particu lar project is appropriate because this is a long term project and wi l l  take a lot of 
time for it to come to fru ition . 

Representative Steiner: I th ink we should make it known that it isn't our intention to take 
the oi l  tax to 5% with this leg islation ;  it is our intention to incentivize this particu lar project so 
there's not a misunderstand ing when we come back in 2017. 

Chairman Headland: I agree with you and I th ink  that message is fa i rly clear. This project 
in its design is for the old vertical fields today and that's how this project wi l l  proceed . Most 
al l  involved understand that point. 

Representative Dockter: Made a motion to adopt the amendment 02004. 

Representative Toman: Second. 

Voice vote: Motion carried. 

Chairman Headland: We have amended b i l l  2318 before us.  

Representative Dockter: Made a motion for a do pass as amended. 

Representative Strinden: Second. 

Vice Chairman Owens: This change seems to correct the issue before with 57.06-17.1 
and th is  was open-ended anyway; i t  was a ten year exemption regard less of when you d id 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
SB 2318 
April 8, 2015 
Page 3 

it even though people keep saying it's expired but it hasn't expired . I want that to be clear 
that the way the law is written right now if somebody used that section now they wou ld sti l l  
get the  ten year tax credit. This seems to  adj ud icate the issue we had before with that and  
I l ike the additional language i n  the study that clarified what they wanted to  do .  

Roll call vote: 12 yes 1 no 1 absent 

Motion carried for a do pass as amended. 

Chairman Headland will carry the bill. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 1, line 4, after "reenact" insert "subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "to" insert "suspension of an oil extraction tax exemption for tertiary 
recovery projects using carbon dioxide and an" 

Page 2, after line 20, insert 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does 
not use carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified 
project by the industrial commission is exempt from any taxes 
imposed under this chapter for a period of ten years from the date the 
incremental production begins. Incremental production from a tertiary 
recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which has been 
certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 
from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the 
incremental production begins. However. incremental production from 
a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide for a horizontal 
well in the Bakken or Three Forks formation and which has been 
certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is not 
exempt from July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2017. and is thereafter 
exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter from July 1. 2017, 
or the date the incremental production begins, whichever is later." 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert ''The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of 
a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect eligibility of such a pipeline 
for the exemption under section 57-06-17 .1." 

Page 3, line 10, replace "Section" with "Sections" 

Page 3, tine 10, after "3" insert "and 4" 

Page 3, line 10, replace "is" with "are" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.8199.02003 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert "The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of 
a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect eligibility of such a pipeline 
for the exemption under section 57-06-17 .1." 

Page 3, line 6, after the period insert "The legislative management shall secure assistance from 
the energy and environmental research center to analyze potential future usage of 
carbon dioxide in oil recovery operations in the Bakken and Three Forks formations. 
the potential production and environmental benefits of that usage for energy industries 
in this state. the economic conditions in which that usage is feasible for oil producers. 
and the estimated fiscal effect of that usage for the state and political subdivisions." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.8199.02004 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2318, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2318 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert "The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part 
of a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect eligibility of such a 
pipeline for the exemption under section 57-06-17 .1." 

Page 3, line 6, after the period insert "The legislative management shall secure assistance 
from the energy and environmental research center to analyze potential future usage 
of carbon dioxide in oil recovery operations in the Bakken and Three Forks 
formations. the potential production and environmental benefits of that usage for 
energy industries in this state, the economic conditions in which that usage is 
feasible for oil producers. and the estimated fiscal effect of that usage for the state 
and political subdivisions." 

Renumber accordingly 
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DEPARTMENT OF COMM ERCE TESTIMONY ON SENATE B I LL 23 1 8  

FEBRUARY 4, 2015, 9 : 00 A.M. 

SENATE FINANCE AND TAXATION COMM ITTEE 

SENATOR DWIGHT COOK, CHAIRMAN 

A LAN ANDERSON - CO M MI SSION, ND D EPARTMENT OF COMM E RCE 

Good morning, Mr.  Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Alan Anderson and I 
serve as the Commissioner for the North Dakota Department of Commerce, as well as chairman 
of the EmPower North Dakota Commission. 

On behalf of the EmPower ND Commission, I am here today to speak in favor of Senate Bill 
23 1 8 . This bill follows a recommendation put forward by the Commission, but was not one of 
the bills drafted by the Commission and approved by the interim Energy Development and 
Transmission committee. The C01mnission has reviewed the bill and is in unanimous support. A 
complete l ist of bills recommended and supported by the Commission is below: 

• Senate Bill No. 2032 - Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority. 
• Senate Bill  No. 2033 - Oil & Gas Tax Trigger Mechanism. 
• Senate Bill No. 2034 - Oil Gathering Pipelines Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill  No. 2035 - Value-Added Energy Facility Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill No. 2036 - Coal Beneficiation. 
• Senate Bill No. 2037 - Wind Energy Incentives & New Coal Mine Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill No. 23 1 8  - Carbon Dioxide Capture Equipment Used for Enhanced Oil 

Recovery. 

The issue of carbon dioxide capture is an important one for our energy industries within the state 
and the potential use of captured carbon dioxide for enhanced oil recovery provides a significant 
opportunity. That is why the EmPower ND Commission recommended that the legislature 
"support incentivizing or enhance C02 capture, storage and enhanced oil recovery 
opportunities." 

The incentives provided in SB 23 1 8  are similar to incentives provided to other aspects of the 
energy industries, namely sales and use tax exemption and exempting the equipment from 
property taxes. The EmPower ND Commission supports these incentives as a way to promote 
solutions for C02 capture as well as enhanced oil recovery. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Finance and Taxation Committee, I respectfully request your 
favorable consideration of Senate Bill  23 1 8 . That concludes my testimony and I am happy to 
entertain any questions. 

� I  



• 

• 

• 

Senate Bi l l  23 1 8  Testimony 
Before the Senate Finance & Taxation Committee 
February 4, 20 1 5  

Thank you ,  Chairman Cook and Com mittee Members, for the opportunity to appear before you , 
and thank you Commissioner Anderson for your i ntroduction to our b i l l .  

My name is Margaret Hodnik .  I am a member of the EmPower Commission and I am VP 

Reg ulatory and Leg islative Affai rs at Minnesota Power (MP). MP is a d ivision of ALLETE. 
ALLETE is a d iversified energy company that owns uti l ities in Minnesota and Wisconsin,  the 
Bismarck-based BNI coal mine,  the 500MW Bison Wind energy farm near Center and Allete 
Clean Energy or ACE which develops non-regulated energy projects. ACE has been working 
with NRG out of Houston Texas to develop an advanced C02 capture for EOR project i n  North 
Dakota and it is this project that led us to req uest the legislation before you today. 

We have identified m inor modifications to exist ing North Dakota tax statutes deal ing with C02 
capture and uti l ization that would help to faci l itate the development of a C02 for EOR project 
using state of the art technology at existing l ignite plants. NRG is bui lding a project l ike this near 

Houston , Texas as I speak. We bel ieve uti l ization of this technology in North Dakota can help to 
make C02 a useful commodity versus an em ission burden at l ignite plants. This would benefit 
both l ign ite generating un its and the l ign ite min ing industry and help North Dakota contend with 
emerg ing C02 reg ulation . 

The legislation would provide for a sales tax exemption on C02 pipel ines and EOR eq uipment. 
It would also clarify that C02 capture or enhanced oil recovery equipment is defined as personal 

property and not subject to property tax. These tax incentives would aid the econom ics of 
developing a C02 for EOR project in North Dakota using state of the art technology. 

Again ,  we appreciate the opportun ity to bring our req uest forward to this com mittee. We thank 
the Em Power Commission for its consideration and support of this bil l  which is beneficial to the 
l ign ite industry. I wi l l  also note that we have representatives of NRG present if the comm ittee 
has questions about the C02 for EOR technology and I note that the Tax Commissioner is 
present if there are q uestions about tax application.  With that, I would be happy to answer any 
q uestions. 

Contact I nformation: 

Margaret Hodnik 
Vice President-Reg u latory and Leg islative Affai rs 
Minnesota Power/ALLETE 
Office Phone: 2 1 8-723-3966 
Cel l  Phone: 2 1 8-591 -8623 
Emai l :  mhodnik@al lete.com 

� Mm1nnesota power 
A N  A L L E T E  C O M P A N Y  

A N  A L L E T E  C O M P A N Y  

A L L  E T  E {:.�,. J' clean energy 
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Lignite Energy Council 
PO Box 2277 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
Telephone: (701) 258-7117 

Fax: (701) 258-2755 

Jason Bohrer, President and CEO, Lignite Energy Council 
Presented before the Senate Finance & Taxation Committee 

February 4, 20 1 5  

Good morning. My name is Jason Bohrer, and I am the President of the Lignite Energy Council .  I come before 
you today in support of 23 1 8 . I am also a member of the Empower Commission, and supported it in that 
capacity as wel l .  But as President of the Lignite Energy Council, we support this bi l l  because we believe it 
provides us with two major opportunities, as well as multiple smaller individual opportunities. 

The first major opportunity is the potential to extend the life of our current p lants. EPA regulations are making 
it more and more l ikely that the future of North Dakota wi ll  be carbon constrained. This bi l l  adapts our tax law 
to this new reality, allowing a certain finance structure going forward that is critical to our future. 

The second major advantage is the "first mover" advantage. As these EPA regulations move forward, the whole 
national energy industry wil l  have to capture and transport C02, and much of the rest of the world is moving in 
this direction as wel l .  

These proposed tax changes make i t  more l ikely that North Dakota will  be the test bed for the whole nation. The 
most recent budget subm itted by President Obama contains $2B for clean coal technologies, and this bil l  makes 
it more likely that we can compete and be awarded a .portion of that money. 

There are also multiple individual opportunities for our members from this bi l l  as wel l .  Projects such as the 
ALLETE/NRG project you've heard about will  add value to their assets. These projects won't just be for 
regulatory compliance, but will  also serve as a revenue generating asset. 

In conclusion, we support this bil l  because it solves a problem we must deal with--helping us build out an 
infrastructure that captures and transports C02. That infrastructure then allows for two major opportunities, 
including the critical value of extending the l ife of our plants. And because this change al lows immediate 
benefits for individual projects l ike ALLETEINRG to move forward, this is the perfect time to make these 
necessary changes. 

Lignite Coal :  America's Abundant Energy Resource 
www.lignite.com 
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February 9, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2318 

Page 1, l ine 5, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative m anagement study;" 

Page 2, after l ine 30, insert: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - OIL EXTRACTION TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR CARBON DIOXIDE RECOVERY PROJECTS. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative m anagement shall study the oi l  extraction tax exemption 
available for incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon 
dioxide. The study m ust include consideration of the potential benefits and costs to 
industry, the state, and the environment of using carbon dioxide enhanced recovery 
methods. The legislative m anagement shal l  report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recom mendations, to the 
sixty-fifty legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15. 8199.01001 
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REPRESENTATIVE CRAIG HEADLAND, CHAIRMAN 

ALAN ANDERSON - COMMISSION, ND DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
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Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Alan Anderson and I 

serve as the Commissioner for the North Dakota Department of Commerce, as well as chairman 
of the EmPower N01ih Dakota Commission. 

On behalf of the EmPower ND Commission, I am here today to speak in favor of Senate Bill  
23 1 8 . This bill fol lows a recommendation put forward by the Commission, but was not one of 
the bills drafted by the Commission and approved by the i nterim Energy Development and 
Transmission committee. The Commission has reviewed the bill and is in unanimous support. A 
list of the bills the House of Representatives will be seeing that has been recommended and 
supported by the Commission is below: 

• Senate Bill No. 2034 - Oil Gathering Pipelines Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill No. 2035 - Value-Added Energy Facility Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill No. 2036 - Coal Beneficiation. 
• Senate Bill No. 203 7 - Wind Energy Incentives. 
• Senate Bill No. 23 1 8  - Carbon Dioxide Capture Equipment Used for Enhanced Oil 

Recovery. 

The issue of carbon dioxide capture is an important one for our energy industries within the state 
and the potential use of captured carbon dioxide for enhanced oil recovery provides a significant 
opportunity. That is why the EmPower ND Commission recommended that the legislature 
"support incentivizing or enhance C02 capture, storage and enhanced oil recovery 
opportunities." 

The incentives provided in SB 23 1 8  are similar to incentives provided to other aspects of the 

energy industries, namely sales and use tax exemption and exempting the equipment from 
property taxes. The EmPower ND Commission supports these incentives as a way to promote 

solutions for C02 capture as well as enhanced oil recovery. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Finance and Taxation Committee, I respectfully request your 
favorable consideration of Senate Bill 23 1 8 . That concludes my testimony and I am happy to 
entertain any questions. 
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Thank you ,  Chairman Headland and Committee Members, for the opportunity to appear before 
you ,  and thank you Commissioner Anderson for your introduction to our b i l l .  

My name is Eric Norberg . I am pleased to be able to testify today on behalf of  ALLETE Clean 
Energy (ACE) and our parent company ALLETE , based in Duluth Minnesota . My col league, 
Margaret Hodnik,  Vice President of Reg ulatory and Legislative Affairs for Minnesota Power, a 
d ivision of ALLETE, who many some of you may know, was unable to be here today - she is 
deal ing with some chal lengi ng reg ulatory issues before the Publ ic Utilities Commission in 
Minnesota. I can assure you she would have much preferred to be i n  Bismarck today! As a 
member of the Empower Commission, Margaret wanted to me personally thank you for your 
i nterest and attention to this important legislation, as wel l  as, share some brief remarks about 
our company and the project this legislation wi l l  benefit. 

As our CEO Al, Hodnik  is known to remark, ALLETE is a, "al l  of the above" d iversified energy 
solutions company that owns utilities in Minnesota and Wisconsin ,  the Bismarck-based BNI coal 
m i ne,  the 500MW Bison Wind energy farm near Center and Allete Clean Energy or ACE ,  the 
d ivision of the company I am honored to lead , which develops non-regulated energy projects. 

ACE has been working with NRG out of Houston Texas to develop an advanced C02 capture 
for EOR project in North Dakota and it is this project that led us to request the legislation before 
you today . 

Together, ACE and NRG have identified m inor modifications to existing North Dakota tax 
statutes deal ing with C02capture and util ization that would help to faci l itate the development of 
a C02 for EOR project using state of the art technology at existing l ignite plants. NRG is  
bui ld ing a project l ike th is  near Houston, Texas as I speak. We bel ieve util ization of  this 
technology i n  North Dakota can help to make C02 a useful commodity versus an emission 
burden at l ign ite plants . This would benefit both l ignite generating un its and the l ignite m ining 
industry and help North Dakota contend with emerging C02 reg ulation .  

The leg islation would provide for a sales tax exemption on C02 pipel ines and EOR eq uipment. 
It would also clarify that C02 capture or enhanced oil recovery equipment is  defined as personal 
property and not subject to property tax. These tax i ncentives would aid the economics of 
developing a C02 for EOR project i n  North Dakota using state of the art technology. 
Again ,  we appreciate the opportunity to bring our request forward to this committee. We thank 
the Em Power Commission for its consideration and support of this bi l l  which is beneficial to the 
l ign ite industry. I wi l l  also note that we have representatives of NRG present if the comm ittee 
has q uestions about the C02 for EOR technology and I note that the Tax Comm issioner is 
present if there are questions about tax application.  With that, I would be happy to answer any 
q uestions. 

Contact I nformation:  
Eric Norberg , President 
ALLETE Clean Energy 
2 1 8-723-3988 
Emai l :  enorberg@al letecleanenergy.com 
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RG Carbon 360 and ALLETE Clean Energy are jointly developing a carbon capture, util ization and 
q uestration project i n  North Dakota. The project is expected to capture carbon d ioxide (C02) from an 

xisting North Dakota l ignite-fired power plant. The C02 wi l l  then be compressed and transported via pipel ine 
along ALLETE's energy corridor to o i l  fields i n  North Dakota and used for Enhanced Oi l  Recovery (EOR). This 
legislation has been endorsed by the Empower Commission and Lignite Energy Council. 

The project is modeled on NRG's Petra Nova project in Texas. Using proven technology, the Petra Nova 
project wi l l  be a commercial-scale carbon capture system that is expected to capture 90 percent of the carbon 
d ioxide (C02) in  the processed flue gas from an existing coal un it at the WA Parish plant southwest of 
Houston.  When com plete in  20 1 6 , the project is projected to be the world 's largest post-combustion carbon 
capture facility insta l led on an existing coal plant. Through EOR, the captured C02 is expected to increase oi l  
production from around 500 barrels per day to approximately 1 5 , 000 barrels per day, peaking at 30 ,000 barrels 
a day. 

Through successful development of a s imi lar project i n  North Dakota, NRG Carbon 360 and ALLETE Clean 
E nergy can make a positive im pact to the State by enhancing the value of local l ign ite resources, v irtual ly 
e l imi nating su lfur emissions from the flue gas, transforming the C02 em issions landscape, preserving the 
value of state electric generating un its, and unlocking the value of North Dakota oi l  production. 

What S . B .  23 1 8  does: 

• 

1 )  Provides for a sales tax exemption on C02 pipel ines and EOR equipment. (Coal plant equ ipment is 
a l ready exempt . )  

2)  Clarifies the coal conversion tax section of code so that both the C02 capture and EOR equ ipment is 
defined as personal property and not subject to the property tax. This exemption is needed as the 
faci l ities wi l l  be located at the wel l  location and not the individual wel l  head (where they would be 
already be exempt as personal property). Examples include the separation and water d isposal 
eq uipment, injection pumps and associated piping. Personal property is already exempt under current 
law. 

WA Parish 
Electrical Generating 
Station 

90% CO.-free 
processed flue gas 
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Lignite Energy Cou�cilj 
PO Box 2277 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
Telephone: (701) 258-7117 
Fax: (701) 258-2755 

Submitted by the Lignite Energy Council before the House Finance & Taxation Committee 

March 4, 2015 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, please accept these comments for the record on behalf of the Lignite 
Energy Council (LEC) in support of Senate Bill 23 1 8. The LEC supports this bill because we believe it provides 
us with two maj or opportunities, as well as smaller individual opportunities. 

The first maj or opportunity is the potential to extend the life of our current plants. EPA regulations are making 

it more and more likely that the future of North D akota will be carbon-constrained. This bill adapts our tax law 
to this new reality, allowing a certain finance structure going forward that is critical to our future. 

The second maj or advantage is that of the "first mover." As these EPA regulations move forward, the national 
energy industry will have to capture and transport carbon dioxide, and much of the rest of the world is moving 
in this direction as well.  

These proposed tax changes make it more likely that North Dakota will be the test bed for the whole nation. The 
most recent budget submitted by President Obama contains $2 billion for clean coal technologies, and this bill 

makes it more likely that we can compete and be awarded a portion of that money. 

There are also many individual opportunities for our members from this bill as well. Projects such as the 
ALLETE/NRG project you've heard about will add value to their assets. These projects will not just be for 
regulatory compliance, but will also serve as a revenue generating asset. 

In conclusion, we support this bill because it solves a problem we must deal with--helping us build out an 
infrastructure that captures and transports carbon dioxide. That infrastructure then allows for two major 
opportunities, including the critical value of extending the life of our plants. And because this change allows 
immediate benefits for individual projects like ALLETE/NRG to move forward, this is the perfect time to make 
these necessary changes. 

The LEC urges your favorable consideration of Senate Bill 23 1 8. 

Lignite Coal:  merica's Abundant Energy Resource 
www.Hgnit • om 
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House Finance and Taxation Committee 

March 31 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 1, line 4, after "reenact" insert "subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51 .1-03 and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "to" insert "suspension of an oil extraction tax exemption for tertiary 
recovery projects using carbon dioxide and an" 

Page 1, line 5, after the semicolon insert "to repeal sections 57-06-17.1 and 57-06-17.2 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to property tax exemptions and payments in lieu 
of taxes for certain carbon dioxide pipeline property;" 

Page 1, line 11 , remove "transporting," 

Page 1, line 14, remove "transport," 

Page 1, line 17, remove "transport," 

Page 1, line 18, after the underscored period insert "The exemption provided by this section 
may not be interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a 
component part of a pipeline." 

Page 1, line 19, remove "transport." 

Page 1, line 24, remove "transporting." 

Page 2, line 3, remove "transport," 

• Page 2, line 9, remove "transporting," 

Page 2, line 18, remove "transporting," 

• 

Page 2, line 20, after the first underscored period insert "The exemption provided by this 
subsection may not be interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated 
as a component part of a pipeline. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does 
not use carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified 
project by the industrial commission is exempt from any taxes 
imposed under this chapter for a period of ten years from the date the 
incremental production begins. Incremental production from a tertiary 
recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which has been 
certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is not 
exempt from July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2017, and is thereafter 
exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter from July 1, 201 7, 
or the date the incremental production begins, whichever is later." 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert "The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of 
a pipeline." 

Page No. 1 15.8199.02002 



Page 2 ,  after l ine 30,  i nsert: 

"SECTION 5. RE PEAL. Sections 57-06-1 7 . 1  and 57-06- 1 7 . 2  of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed . "  

Page 3 ,  l ine 1 0 , replace "Section" with "Sections" 

Page 3 ,  l ine 1 0 , after "3" insert ",  4 ,  and 5" 

Page 3, l ine 1 0, replace "is" with "are" 

Ren u m ber accord ing ly  

Page No.  2 1 5. 8 1 99.02002 
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April 1, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 1, line 4, after "reenact" insert "subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "to" insert "suspension of an oil extraction tax exemption for tertiary 
recovery projects using carbon dioxide and an" 

Page 2, after line 20, insert 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does 
not use carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified 
project by the industrial commission is exempt from any taxes 
imposed under this chapter for a period of ten years from the date the 
incremental production begins. Incremental production from a tertiary 
recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which has been 
certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 
from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the 
incremental production begins. However. incremental production from 
a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide for a horizontal 
well in the Bakken or Three Forks formation and which has been 
certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is not 
exempt from July 1. 2015. through June 30. 2017. and is thereafter 
exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter from July 1. 2017. 
or the date the incremental production begins. whichever is later." 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert "The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of 
a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect eligibility of such a pipeline 
for the exemption under section 57-06-17.1." 

Page 3, line 10, replace "Section" with "Sections" 

Page 3, line 10, after "3" insert "and 4" 

Page 3, line 10, replace "is" with "are" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.8199.02003 
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1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 57-39.2 and a new subdivision to 

2 subsection 4 of section 57-40.2-03.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a sales and 

3 use tax exemption for carbon dioxide capture equipment used for enhanced oil recovery; to 

4 amend and reenact subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51 .1-03 and section 57-60-06 of 

5 the North Dakota Century Code, relating to suspension of an oil extraction tax exemption for 

6 tertiary recovery projects using carbon dioxide and an ad valorem property tax exemption for 

7 carbon dioxide capture equipment used for enhanced oil recovery; to provide for a legislative 

8 management study; and to provide an effective date. 

9 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

10 SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 57-39 .2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

11 and enacted as follows: 

12 Sales and use tax exemption for materials used in compressing, gathering, 

13 collecting, storing, transporting, or injecting carbon dioxide for use in enhanced 

14 recovery of oil or natural gas. 

15 1,_ Gross receipts from sales of tangible personal property used to construct or expand a 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

system used to compress. gather. collect. store. transport. or inject carbon dioxide for 

use in enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas in this state are exempt from taxes 

under this chapter. To be exempt. the tangible personal property must be incorporated 

into a system used to compress, gather. collect. store. transport. or inject carbon 

dioxide for use in enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas. Tangible personal property 

used to replace an existing system to compress. gather. collect. store. transport, or 

inject carbon dioxide for use in enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas does not 

qualify for exemption under this section unless the replacement creates an expansion 

of the system. 

Page No. 1 15.8199.02003 
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1 ~ To receive the exemption under this section at the time of purchase. the owner of the 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

gas compressing, gathering, collecting, storing, transporting, or injecting system must 

receive from the tax commissioner a certificate that the tangible personal property 

used to construct or expand a system used to compress. gather. collect. store. 

transport, or inject carbon dioxide for use in enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas 

qualifies for the exemption. If a certificate is not received before the purchase. the 

owner shall pay the applicable tax imposed by this chapter and apply to the tax 

commissioner for a refund. 

9 3. If the tangible personal property is purchased or installed by a contractor subject to the 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

tax imposed by this chapter, the owner of the gas compressing, gathering, collecting. 

storing, transporting, or injecting system may apply to the tax commissioner for a 

refund of the difference between the amount remitted by the contractor and the 

exemption imposed or allowed by this section. Application for a refund must be made 

at the time and in the manner directed by the tax commissioner and must include 

sufficient information to permit the tax commissioner to verify the sales and use taxes 

paid and the exempt status of the sale or use. 

17 4. This chapter and chapter 57-40.2 apply to the exemption under this section. 

18 SECTION 2. A new subdivision to subsection 4 of section 57-40.2-03.3 of the North Dakota 

19 Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

20 Materials used in compressing, gathering, collecting, storing, transporting, or 

21 injecting carbon dioxide for use in enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas as 

22 provided in section 1 of this Act. 

23 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 57-51.1-03 of the 

24 North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does not use 

carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which 

has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 

from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the incremental 

Page No. 2 15.8199.02003 
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1 production begins. However. incremental production from a tertiary recovery 

2 project that uses carbon dioxide for a horizontal well in the Bakken or Three 

3 Forks formation and which has been certified as a qualified project by the 

4 industrial commission is not exempt from July 1, 2015. through June 30, 2017, 

5 and is thereafter exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter from July 1, 

6 2017. or the date the incremental production begins. whichever is later. 

7 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-60-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

8 amended and reenacted as follows: 

9 57-60-06. Property classified and exempted from ad valorem taxes - In lieu of certain 

10 other taxes - Credit for certain other taxes. 

11 Each coal conversion facility and any carbon dioxide capture system located at the coal 

12 conversion facility, and any equipment directly used for enhanced recovery of oil or natural gas 

13 must be classified as personal property and is exempt from all ad valorem taxes except for 

14 taxes on the land on which St:fOOthe facility, capture system, or equipment is located. The 

15 exemption provided by this section may not be interpreted to apply to tangible personal property 

16 incorporated as a component part of a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect 

17 eligibil ity of such a pipel ine for the exemption under section 57-06-17 .1 . The taxes imposed by 

18 this chapter are in lieu of ad valorem taxes on the property so classified as personal property. 

19 SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - OIL EXTRACTION TAX 

20 EXEMPTION FOR CARBON DIOXIDE RECOVERY PROJECTS. During the 2015-16 interim, 

21 the legislative management shall study the oil extraction tax exemption available for incremental 

22 production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide. The study must include 

23 consideration of the potential benefits and costs to industry, the state, and the environment of 

24 using carbon dioxide enhanced recovery methods. The legislative management shall report its 

25 findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 

26 recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 

27 SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act are effective for tax periods 

28 beginning after June 30, 2015. SectionSections 3 and 4 of this Act J.sare effective for taxable 

29 years beginning after December 31 , 2014. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2318 

Page 2, line 28, after the period insert "The exemption provided by this section may not be 
interpreted to apply to tangible personal property incorporated as a component part of 
a carbon dioxide pipeline but this restriction does not affect eligibility of such a pipeline 
for the exemption under section 57-06-17.1." 

Page 3, line 6, after the period insert "The legislative management shall secure assistance from 
the energy and environmental research center to analyze potential future usage of 
carbon dioxide in oil recovery operations in the Bakken and Three Forks formations , 
the potential production and environmental benefits of that usage for energy industries 
in this state. the economic conditions in which that usage is feasible for oil producers , 
and the estimated fiscal effect of that usage for the state and political subdivisions." 

Renumber accordingly 
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